
Law & Governance
Democratic Services

TO COUNCILLOR:

G A Boulter
J W Boyce

B Dave
J Kaufman (Chair)

Mrs H E Loydall

Dear Sir or Madam

I hereby INVITE you to attend a meeting of the HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD to be held at 
the COUNCIL OFFICES, STATION ROAD, WIGSTON on WEDNESDAY, 11 APRIL 2018 at 1.30 
PM for the transaction of the business set out in the Agenda below.

Yours faithfully

Council Offices
Wigston
21 March 2018

Mrs Anne E Court
Chief Executive (Interim)

I T E M  N O . A G E N D A P A G E  N O ’ S

1.  Welcome by Chairman, Councillor Jeffrey Kaufman

2.  Apologies for Absence

3.  Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 24 January 2018 1 - 7

4.  Update on Achievements and Outcomes From the 2017/18 HWBB Priorities

a)  Group 1 - Dementia / Mental Health

b)  Group 2 - Diabetes / Healthy Weight

c)  Group 3 - Substance / Alcohol Misuse / Stop Smoking

5.  Public Health Statistics - Presentation(s) By:

a)  Natalie Greasley, Public Health Business Partner LCC

b)  Dr Katherine Packham, Specialist Registrar in Public Health LCC

6.  Workshop - Discussion on Health Priorities for 2018/19 (Rationale and Need)

7.  Any Other Business

8.  Future Meeting Dates

For more information, please contact:



Health and Wellbeing Board
Wednesday, 11 April 2018

 Printed and published by Democratic Services, Oadby 
and Wigston Borough Council, Council Offices, Station 

Road, Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 2DR

Head of Health and Leisure Services
Oadby and Wigston Borough Council

Council Offices
Station Road, Wigston

Leicestershire 
LE18 2DR

t:  (0116) 257 2673
e:  avril.lennox@oadby-wigston.gov.uk



Health and Wellbeing Board
Wednesday, 24 January 2018

Chair’s 
Initials 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD HELD AT THE 
COUNCIL OFFICES, STATION ROAD, WIGSTON ON WEDNESDAY, 24 JANUARY 2018 

COMMENCING AT 1.30 PM

PRESENT


Councillor J W Boyce (Chair)


COUNCILLORS 


G A Boulter
K J Loydall JP (Substitute)


OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE


J Humphries
Mrs A Lennox MBE
K Radford
M Smith

(Sports Development Assistant)
(Head of Health and Leisure Services)
(Physical Activity Coordinator)
(Community Safety & Youth Coordinator)



OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE


Sharon Rose
James Naylor
Zaheera Chatra
Mike Cawley
Amy Perry
Claire Bradshaw
Danny Saines

(Locality Manager, East Leicestershire CCG)
(Manager Parklands Leisure Centre)
(LCC Stop Smoking Service Manager)
(Inspector for South Leicestershire Neighbourhood Policing Area)
(Supporting Leicestershire Families)
(Leicestershire County Council Libraries)
(First Contact Plus)



16. WELCOME BY CHAIRMAN, COUNCILLOR JOHN BOYCE

The Chair, Cllr John Boyce, welcomed attendees to the meeting.

17. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

An apology for absence was received from Councillors J Kaufman, Dr T K Khong, Mrs 
Helen E Loydall, Miss Anne R Bond, Debbie Preston, Dr Varakantam and Ruth Day.

18. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 11 OCTOBER 2017

The minutes of the previous meeting of the Committee held on 11 October 2017 to be 
taken as read, confirmed and signed.

19. PRESENTATION - MESSAGE IN A BOTTLE

Mike Cawley and Kevin Loydall provided information about a new campaign, sponsored by 
the Oadby and Wigston Community Safety Partnership and the Lions Club, called “Message 
in a Bottle”. The campaign aims to ensure every elderly or vulnerable person has a 
“Message in a Bottle” in their home. The scheme, which is a development of the 
nationwide Herbert Protocol, encourages family, friends and carers to compile useful 
health and contact information, which can be used in the case of an emergency. A sticker 
is placed on the back of the resident’s front door, to indicate that a Green Bottle is stored 
in the fridge containing medical and contact details. All partners were asked to promote 
the scheme; free bottles and forms can be collected from the local Police Station and 
Libraries.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Health and Wellbeing Board
Wednesday, 24 January 2018

Chair’s 
Initials 

20. UPDATE ON OADBY & WIGSTON HEALTH PRIORITY 2. DIABETES / HEALTHY 
WEIGHT

KR provided an overview of programmes that have taken place across the Borough since 
April 2017, in relation to this priority, together with those programmes planned up to the 
end of March 2018.

FliC 

Leicestershire Nutrition and Dietetic Service (LNDS) has been contracted to run two 8 
week family lifestyle groups each year which target inactive children and their parents. The 
sessions are divided into nutritional advice and physical activities. One programme has run 
this year with another planned in February. 

LEAP

LDNS is also contracted to run 4 blocks of 11 week lifestyle groups which target inactive 
and overweight adults. 3 programmes have run this year with a final block of sessions 
taking place. As with the FliC programme the session is a mix of information from a 
dietitian and physical activities. 

Diabeaters

Everyone Active deliver a very successful programme which allows adults with type 2 
Diabetes the opportunity to learn more about managing their condition through nutrition 
and exercise. 

Exercise Referral & Heartsmart

Everyone Active is contracted to deliver the Exercise Referral and Heartsmart programmes 
on behalf of the Council. This is a referral scheme, where GP are able to refer suitable 
patients, based on their condition, for exercise. The sessions are made up of 1 to 1 
activities and groups. 

‘One You’ 

A ‘One You’ Health Roadshow is planned for Friday 26th January between 10:00 am and 
1:00 pm outside the Customer Service Centre in Bell Street, Wigston. There will be a range 
of health professionals on hand to distribute information. As well as an opportunity to play 
table tennis, there will also be a chance to win a prize by completing the ‘How Are You’ 
quiz. 

Oadby and Wigston Hindu Community

This year funding has been provided to the Oadby and Wigston Hindu Community group 
to organise some Badminton sessions at Beauchamp College. These sessions were 
identified through consultation with their members on what physical activities they would 
like to try.
  
Parklands Running and Walking Groups 

In partnership with the Council’s Health and Leisure team, Everyone Active has set up a 
very successful Women’s Running Group at Parklands Leisure Centre and a Walking group. 
Both programmes have brought new people to the leisure centre that wouldn’t ordinarily 
utilise these facilities’. This opportunity has made a huge impact on many of the 

Page 2



Health and Wellbeing Board
Wednesday, 24 January 2018

Chair’s 
Initials 

participant’s lives. 

School Sport and Physical Activity Programmes
 
‘Future Active’ is contracted to deliver school sport and physical activity programmes in the 
Borough which target inactive children. They have designed and delivered programmes 
both in and out of school, to children who don’t normally engage with traditional PE 
sessions and are inactive. 

Falls Prevention
 
Everyone Active has been contracted to deliver our falls prevention programme Strong and 
Steady which targets adults over 65 who are unsteady on their feet. It is a 24 week 
structured programme which aims to build strength and balance and teaches participants 
exercises they can practice at home. Everyone Active also run weekly maintainer classes 
for participants who have finished the first programme; these sessions have been very 
successful. The Council has now been successful in drawing down funding to run this 
programme again for another full year. 

21. OADBY AND WIGSTON HEALTH PRIORITY 3.  SUBSTANCE / ALCOHOL MISUSE / 
STOP SMOKING SERVICES

Unfortunately Ruth Day, Senior Recovery Worker from Turning Point, was unable to attend 
the meeting at the last minute. There was no representative available to attend on behalf 
of the Turning Point, and no progress report provided.

It was recommended that a meeting take place with representatives from this group with 
Debra Cunningham who is the Public Health Lead for this commissioned service. 

Stop Smoking Service

Zaheera Chatra (LCC Stop Smoking Service Manager) provided a detailed overview of the 
first year anniversary of this new service. She discussed the district priorities and provided 
a copy of the Smoking/Tobacco control Action Plan (a copy of which is filed together with 
these minutes at Annex A) which detailed four strategic areas of work:

1. Promoting and implementation of smoke-free homes, cars and open public places
2. Reducing smoking prevalence in routine and manual workgroups
3. Reducing smoking prevalence in pregnant women
4. Reducing smoking prevalence in people with mental ill health

One current area of work, implemented by another LA, is smoke-free parks. Cllr Boulter to 
raise this topic at the next OWBC Service Delivery Committee, with the possibility of using 
Peace Memorial Park as a pilot. It is recommended work takes place in schools to educate 
individuals. The scheme would be on a voluntary basis as it is clearly not possible to 
police.

Zaheera distributed a poster advertising the Smoking Cessation and Mental Health 
Workshop which will be held on 21 February at Beaumanor Hall. Attendees were asked to 
promote this opportunity via their networks.

Zaheera is also working with local Leisure Centres on a reward scheme to encourage 
people to quit smoking. A total of 2,000 people have so far accessed the scheme so far 
county-wide, however Oadby and Wigston’s numbers are not as high as other districts. A 
12 week programme has been designed; after 4 weeks of not smoking the individual will 

Page 3



Health and Wellbeing Board
Wednesday, 24 January 2018

Chair’s 
Initials 

be rewarded with a free leisure centre pass or similar. JN and AL have already discussed 
this reward scheme. Zaheera to forward approximate numbers for the Oadby and Wigston 
area, then JN and AL can confirm the level of support. 

MS provided information about the Zest Theatre group who have been commissioned to 
deliver productions in schools to inform the students about homelessness and the negative 
side of alcohol and drug misuse. The feedback from attendees in Oadby and Wigston has 
been positive. This topic is supported by and links to the Community Safety Partnership 
strategic plan.

MC confirmed there should be a statutory partner involvement from the CCG, with regards 
to the Community Safety Partnership.  Sharon Rose to take this action away, and confirm 
appropriate representative from the CCG.

Zaheera to provide AL with Debra Cunningham’s contact details in order to set up a 
meeting to discuss the commissioning details around Turning Point, in particular to gain a 
greater understanding of how this service integrates into other work steams and how it fits 
locally.  KL confirmed that Turning Point is also not attending meetings with the CSP or 
Joint Action Group. Amy Perry, from Supporting Leicestershire Families, confirmed they 
refer into Turning Point and this system is currently working.

First Contact Plus confirmed it has a Warm Homes Officer. Grants are available to 
residents for cavity wall insulation and those suffering fuel poverty.  

22.  ANY OTHER BUSINESS

22a. TERMS OF REFERENCE

The proposed newly updated Terms of Reference for the Oadby and Wigston Health and 
Wellbeing Board were discussed. All agreed that these should replace the current version. 

23. NEXT MEETING

Next meeting will be the Board’s Health Summit, to which all health partners will be 
invited, in order shape the 2018/19 priorities for the Borough and will be held on 
Wednesday 11 April 2018 at 1:30 p.m. at Oadby and Wigston Borough Council Offices.

THE MEETING CLOSED AT 3.30 PM


Chair

Wednesday, 11 April 2018



Printed and published by Democratic Services, Oadby and Wigston Borough Council
Council Offices, Station Road, Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 2DR

Page 4



ANNEX A

Stop Smoking and Tobacco Control Action Plan 2017/18

To achieve these aims, the Action Plan identifies four strategic action areas:

 Promoting and implementation of smokefree homes, cars and open public places

 Reducing smoking prevalence in routine and manual workgroups

 Reducing smoking prevalence in pregnant women

 Reducing smoking prevalence in people with mental ill health

A number of actions have been identified within each strategic area to help achieve the challenging aim of driving down smoking levels and working towards 
a smokefree society. The Tobacco Control Plan for England identifies the core national ambitions in reducing smoking prevalence which will help focus 
tobacco control across the whole system and these are: 

 Reduce the prevalence of 15 year olds who regularly smoke from 8% to 3% or less

 Reduce smoking prevalence amongst adults in England from 15.5% to 12% or less

 Reduce the prevalence of smoking in pregnancy from 10.7% to 6% or less

 Improve data collection on patients with mental ill health and make inpatient mental health service sites smokefree by 2018

The vision for Leicestershire is to have a smokefree society in which the harm from tobacco is eradicated. The 
aim is to also drive down smoking prevalence further i.e. reduce the prevalence of 15 year olds who regularly 
smoke, reduce smoking prevalence amongst adults in England, reduce the inequality gap in smoking 
prevalence between those in routine and manual occupations and the general population. In order to 
achieve this we need all public services to work together, leading the way in helping people to stop 
smoking and move towards a smokefree generation.

P
age 5



ANNEX A

Key outcomes/actions Key Partners Budget Timescales
Smokefree 
Homes

Districts to help support the promotion of the 
smokefree home package which includes training 
for professionals and the leaflet resource which 
includes the pledge to keep homes and cars 
smokefree. This resource has been developed 
with a view in particularly targeting families, 
schools and children centres.  
District Leads (DLs) to identify key contacts for 
potential brief advice training interventions for 
staff. For example, housing and tenancy 
associations and professionals coming into 
contact with families. 
DLs to support the review on policies for 
smokefree homes in tenancies and social housing 
in particular where one or more children are living 
at the address. 

 Public Health Nurses
 Children Centre 

Managers 
 Midwives 
 Schools
  Early Years 

 Tenancy associations 
and DLs

Smokefree 
Open Public 
Places

Look at smokefree policies and include the review 
or introduction of policies. Follow the lead from 
Hinckley & Bosworth Council’s introduction of 
smokefree parks. This is to include workplace 
health, parks and public places. We would need 
to understand where these could apply for 
example smokefree public places, assistance in 
developing guidance and would local guidance be 
needed in order to guide workstream. For 
example, QuitReady (QR) to organise a workshop 
by pooling in districts, key partners and guest 
speakers to discuss the advantages and 
disadvantages of suggested workstreams and 
create an opportunity for sharing best practice 
and the potential to expand and scope whether 
proposals are worth it. 

 All key partners £2000- includes 
venue hire, 
guest 
speakers, 
event 
resources

P
age 6



ANNEX A

Smokefree Cars Any known prosecutions, if yes- do we know the 
details of how this was enforced and how 
effective this is?

 Police service

Routine & 
Manual (R&M) 
workgroups

DLs to help QR in the identification of workplaces 
with high prevalence of smoking in particular 
targeting R&M workforces. QR is able to offer 
support at workplace health events and provide 
behavioural intervention and support to staff for 
employers who have a high number of people 
interested in stopping smoking. In addition to this 
is do DLs feel there are other identified needs in 
supporting workplaces? 

 QR
 DLs
 Identified workplaces

Trading 
Standards

Attached specification for Trading Standards  Trading standards

Pregnancy A view to develop a pledge or social marketing 
campaign and this could be a joint-initiative to 
include both, the city stop smoking service and 
county. 
Develop a resource with midwives to help with 
stop smoking intervention. Through focus groups 
and sharing best practice with other services.
CO monitors – All pregnancy services would have 
been provided with a CO monitor from the SSS. 

 QR & city stop smoking 
service

 QR and Midwifery 
services

Employ social 
marketing 
company 
maximum 
spend £5000

£500-£1000

Mental Health Commissioning workshop sessions for local 
services. Invite key speakers i.e. John Britton 
from Nottingham Mental Health Trust- shared 
experience, discuss the “do’s or don’ts” 
Feedback on workshop and resources, East 
Midlands Public Health England Network- 15th 
November 2017. Look at opportunities on how we 
can implement locally. 

 QR

 ZC/ QR

£2000

P
age 7


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 24 January 2018
	Minutes


